	shington Street 61801	ZONING BOA t	RD OF APPEALS	
DATE:	April 29, 202	21	PLACE:	ZOOM MEETING Lyle Shields Meeting Room 1776 East Washington Street
TIME:	6:30 p.m.			Urbana, IL 61802
MEMBERS	S PRESENT:			oom: Ryan Elwell, Jim Randol, n, Marilyn Lee, Lee Roberts, Larry We
MEMBERS	ABSENT:	None		
STAFF PRI	ESENT:	•	Putman Meeting Ro Coom: Susan Burgstr	o <i>om:</i> Lori Busboom, John Hall om
OTHERS P	RESENT:		-	n, Stephen Dahl, Steve Jacobs, Bran steck, Mary Ann Royse, Phil Van N
The meeting	was called to o	order at 6:31 p.m.		
The meeting	was called to o			
2. Roll	Call and Decla	ration of Quoru	ım	
The roll was	called, and a qu	uorum declared p	present.	
	informed the aunselves on Zoor	•	one wishing to test	fy for any public hearing tonight n
3. Corr	espondence - N	None		
4. App	roval of Minut	es – March 11, 20	0.01	
		tion to approve t	021	
Mr. Elwell e	ntertained a mo		021 he minutes of Marcl	n 11, 2021.
			he minutes of Marcl	n 11, 2021. ninutes of March 11, 2021.
Mr. Randol	moved, second	led by Mr. Woo	he minutes of Marcl	ninutes of March 11, 2021.
Mr. Randol Mr. Elwell s	moved, second aid that on the l	led by Mr. Woo ast page, he vote	he minutes of Marcl d, to approve the n	ninutes of March 11, 2021.
Mr. Randol Mr. Elwell s With no othe	moved, second aid that on the l	led by Mr. Woo ast page, he vote fr. Elwell request	he minutes of Marcl d, to approve the n d in favor of adjourn	ninutes of March 11, 2021.
Mr. Randol Mr. Elwell s With no othe	moved, second aid that on the 1 er comments, M	led by Mr. Woo ast page, he vote [r. Elwell request ws: yes	he minutes of Marcl d, to approve the n d in favor of adjourn	ninutes of March 11, 2021.

- 1 5. Continued Public Hearings None
- **3 6. New Public Hearings**
- 4 5 Case 004-S-21

6 Petitioners: Brandon Moore, Stephen Dahl and Brad Bengtson, d.b.a. Sandpiper Holdings LLC

- 7 Request: Authorize the construction and use of up to 170,260 square feet of Self-Storage Warehouse
- 8 Units of various sizes including 45,300 square feet of Self-Storage Warehouse Units with climate
- 9 control and 124,960 square feet of non-climate controlled Self-Storage Warehouse Units as a Special
- 10 Use on land in the B-3 Highway Business Zoning District.
- 11 Location: An 11.2-acre tract of land located in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of
- 12 Section 9, Township 18 North, Range 8 East of Tolono Township of the Third Principal Meridian,

13 commonly known as the 4.48-acre former gas station with an address of 872 CR 1000 North,

- 14 Champaign and the 6.72-acre vacant lot west of the former gas station.
- 15

2

- 18 register, they are signing an oath.
- 19

Mr. Elwell informed the audience that this Case is an Administrative Case, and as such, the County allows anyone the opportunity to cross-examine any witness. He said that at the proper time, he will ask for a show of hands or a verbal indication from those who would like to cross-examine, and each person will be called upon. He said that those who desire to cross-examine will be asked to clearly state their name before asking any questions. He noted that no new testimony is to be given during the cross-examination. He said that attorneys who have complied with Article 7.6 of the ZBA By-Laws are exempt from crossexamination. He asked if the petitioners would like to outline the nature of their request prior to

- 27 introducing evidence.
- 28

Mr. Philip Van Ness, 202 Lincoln Square, Urbana is with Webber & Thies, who is representing Sandpiper Holdings LLC. He said that he believes that Mr. Don Wauthier, engineering consultant with Berns, Clancy Associates, is in attendance it and he will address the technical issues, although it appears that the technical issues have been pretty well laid out in the materials that were provided to staff. He said that there were two comments that were related to drainage, and as can be seen in the materials provided, the concerns have been substantially addressed both in terms of internal berms and construction of a retention basin to account for the volumes of water that will be flowing off that site.

36

37 Mr. Don Wauthier, Vice President of Berns, Clancy & Associates, said that the developer, Mr. Brandon38 Moore, was interested in testifying.

39

40 Mr. Brandon Moore, 1165 Hoo Soo Too Drive, Monticello, stated that he is representing Sandpiper Holdings Group on behalf of his partners, Stephen Dahl and Brandon Bengtson, who are both in 41 42 attendance. He thanked everyone for being here tonight, and they don't take it lightly that the Board has taken time away from their jobs, businesses and families to be here. He thanked P&Z Staff for their 43 44 incredible amount of assistance, and the two owners of the neighboring properties who took the time to 45 provide helpful comments to the Board. He said that the Reifsteck and Smith families have a long history of stewardship of the land in which they have been entrusted and Sandpiper Holdings share their 46 47 commitment to sustain and improve the land. He said that he is a life-long central Illinoisan who has lived in Champaign with his wife Brandy for 23 years. He said that 2021 marks his tenth year working for 48 49 Remax as a real estate broker and he currently works at Remax Choice at the Crossing. He said he has

Mr. Elwell informed the audience that anyone wishing to testify for any public hearing tonight must sign the witness register for that public hearing. He reminded the audience that when they sign the witness

1 been in sales for 25 years in nearly every facet of the real estate sector and he has been a real estate investor 2 for over 20 years. He said he is currently a member of the Central Illinois Rental Property Professionals. 3 He said that Stephen, a.k.a. Doug Dahl is a 21-year IBEW journeyman and he has spent the last 15 years 4 at the University of Illinois as an electrician. He said that Doug and his wife Maureen and their children 5 live in St. Joseph. He said that Doug grew up in Rolling Acres, just a few miles from the subject property. 6 He said that Doug has seen the tremendous growth and progress for close to 50 years now in Champaign. 7 He said that Doug has been a real estate developer for at least the last 15 years and has been very active 8 coaching girls softball. He said that Brad Bengtson, their final partner, has had a distinguished banking 9 career for nearly 30 years, and has lived in Champaign County for over 20 years. He said that Brad and his wife Bonnie and their children currently live in Savoy. He said that Brad has been a fixture in the real 10 11 estate community for many years, and is a 15-year member and current board member of the Champaign Rotary West and a member of the Central Illinois Rental Property Professionals. 12

13

14 Mr. Moore said that they are seeking to build self-storage at the intersection of Monticello Road and I-57. 15 He said that his dad built the first self-storage business in Pana, IL, back in the 1980s. He said that his dad 16 saw the idea in a self-storage magazine, immediately bought some land, put up some steel buildings and 17 proceeded to build what is still operating as a very successful business today. He said he saw firsthand both the struggles and rewards of building a self-storage business, and that stayed with him into adulthood. 18 He said that since he has been an investor, he has spent the last 20 years wanting to follow in his footsteps. 19 20 He said that for the last 7 years he has desired to purchase the property located on Monticello Road and I-21 57 because he felt this would be an ideal location to do new construction. He said that about 8 months ago, he noticed the property at the former gas station was finally for sale. He said that he quickly put 22 23 together a team of investors who he knew had the wherewithal to make their goal a reality. He said that 24 they offered an amount for the property that left no doubt in the minds of the sellers that they were serious. 25 He said that gradually, their team of three partners grew by adding two attorneys, Mary Ann Royse and 26 Phil Van Ness of Webber Thies. He said that further adding to their team, they brought Don Wauthier 27 with Berns Clancy & Associates, who has been a tremendous help to all of them; Andy Lucas of Longview 28 Bank for financing; 38-year CPA David Klimas; and Gretchen Eaton, a truly gifted architect with SAA 29 Architects who specializes in self-storage facilities. He said they next contracted with Bob and Bill Copper 30 with Self Storage 101, who currently own, consult and manage with hundreds of storage properties around the country. He said they commissioned two separate feasibility studies to determine if there was unmet 31 demand for storage within the immediate 1, 3- and 5-mile areas surrounding the location, and also what 32 type of demand existed. He said that the results of both studies were conclusive, finding that there is 33 34 substantial demand; much of that demand revolves around a strong interest in climate-controlled storage as well as non-climate control. He said that many local businesses have waiting lists for storage, 35 36 particularly climate-controlled storage. He said in summation, the Special Use Permit will provide the 37 community with the following: they will build an upscale, technologically advanced, A-class storage 38 solution business for those who live and work in the area; they will continue oversight of the cleanup of 39 the environmental areas left by the former gas station; they will significantly contribute to the property 40 tax revenue of the County; they will add a thriving business to expand the southern edge of Champaign that will attract investment in the immediate area; they will build structures and facilities that will make a 41 42 strong impression to everyone traveling into Champaign on I-57; and they will work with their strong team of local attorneys, engineers, architects, laborers and consultants to ensure strict compliance with 43 44 local and county code requirements, and work in partnership with local officials and their neighbors. 45

Mr. Don Wauthier, Vice President of Berns, Clancy & Associates, 405 E Main St, Urbana, said that this
project is going to be a state-of the art type facility that includes about 40,000 square feet of temperature
controlled storage space in the main building as well as about 25,000 square feet of drive-up self-storage

1 about not only remediation and removal of the existing gas station and those sorts of things, but we're also 2 looking at installing the storm water management basin for the entire site as well so that they can be sure 3 that drainage is properly dealt with. He said that today, the adjacent landowner identified some drainage 4 concerns that they were aware of and wanted to take care of from the existing gas station site. He said that 5 they want to make sure those are taken care of before they get underway. He said that the site will be 6 secured with chain link security fencing and keyed access gates. He said that one of the interesting things 7 is that the temperature-controlled building will have a drive-through alley for loading and unloading inside. He said that because this is a rural area, they wanted to make sure that they are sensitive to the 8 9 neighborhood. He said the facility will include LED lighting that is dark sky shielded such that it dims if there is no motion and brightens if there is motion so that there is minimal power use and minimal glare 10 11 and night lighting unless there is a need for it. He said that they identified that there is a threatened species of sandpiper that happens to live in this neighborhood, primarily nesting in and around the Willard airport 12 13 area. However, they are going to accommodate those birds with a 25-foot vegetated buffer around the 14 entire property so that it is visually appealing and allows for some sandpiper nesting sites. He said that the 15 storage buildings will generally be 1 story in size, and will be fully accessible. He said that the intent is to 16 comply with all of the codes. He said that they think this is a great facility for the neighborhood and they 17 think there are a number of reasons why this location is appropriate for this facility. He said it is necessary for the public convenience due to demand for self-storage, particularly temperature-controlled self-18 19 storage, as the studies indicated. He said that Monticello Road is capable of supporting the traffic that 20 would be generated from this site, which will be less than if it was being operated as a gas station. He said 21 that emergency services are available for this site; the Tolono Fire Department is five travel miles away, 22 and the Savoy Fire Department is six travel miles away. He said that since Savoy uses a County Sheriff's 23 deputy as their primary police, there will be Sheriff's deputy within 5 miles pretty much at all times. He 24 said that they think that the use of the site and the way it is going to set up will be compatible with adjacent 25 land uses. He said that it is surrounded by agricultural land primarily, so they don't think it will be a 26 significant impact on the neighborhood, particularly if they take care of drainage properly onsite. He said 27 that the fencing allows for any litter to be captured onsite. He said that drainage is probably one of the 28 bigger things because the site will primarily be hard surface, so they are anticipating construction of a 3.5-29 acre feet stormwater management basin. He said that the site is very suitable for that use in that location. 30 He said that it is kind of a unique site in that there is the gas station site there and the 6.5-acre triangular 31 lot that is currently in crops but that parcel is not really very suitable for row crop production in today's modern standards. He said that the site has always been zoned B-3 since adoption of the original County 32 Zoning Ordinance on October 10, 1973, so for 40 plus years, it has always been envisioned that there 33 34 would be a business at this location and it makes sense to do that now. He said that they don't think that 35 the use is going to be injurious in any way to the neighborhood; they think that the reuse of the vacant 36 truck stop/gas station site is a benefit to the community because it gets rid of eyesore that is there now and 37 allows a productive, valuable, real estate tax paying entity to go in its place. He said that they will have 38 onsite wastewater disposal and a well. He said there is not going to be very much need for water supply 39 or potable water. He said that they have not determined exactly how they will serve the site with fire suppression, whether they will look at extending Illinois American Water lines to the site or whether they 40 41 will do some sort of an onsite storage system. He said that they think this will enhance the value of the 42 neighborhood rather than detract from the neighborhood. They think that the vacant gas station detracts from the neighborhood; it is an empty site that is looking for something bad to happen there. He said that 43 44 as part of the development, they will do any environmental cleanup that might be necessary. He said there 45 have been four separate cleanup efforts in the past, and as part of sales contract there will be a fifth one done. He said that they think this will be a good site, and a good product that will be a long term positive 46 47 for the community. He asked if there were any questions.

48

49 Mr. Randol asked if they would use existing septic or install a new system.

1 2 3	Mr. Wauthier said they would install a new system. He said that the existing system is to the north of the gas station and the leach field is underneath the parking lot, so it needs to be replaced.
4 5	Mr. Randol asked if the well would be new also.
6 7 8 9	Mr. Wauthier said they would have a new well. He said that the existing well is not in a convenient place, and so it is probably best to abandon that well and put a new one in its place. He said that they have looked at groundwater conditions, and there is adequate supply of groundwater.
10 11 12	Mr. Randol asked if they are aware that if they are abandoning that well that it has to be done by a licensed well driller.
13 14	Mr. Wauthier said yes, and drilling the new well will also be done by a licensed well driller.
15 16	Mr. Randol how far the site is from the Illinois American Water main.
17 18 19 20 21	Mr. Wauthier said the water main is one-third of a mile to the east along Duncan Road. He said that they have to look at the cost-benefit of extending to that line. He said that Illinois American Water will want 100% developer payment for that installation, which is a significant amount of money. He said that they still have to do that cost-benefit analysis.
22 23	Mr. Anderson asked how they are going to dispose of the existing concrete onsite.
24 25 26	Mr. Wauthier said it will be disposed of properly, just as you would any other material like that. He said that is something in the design of the system to come. He said that the existing pavement is not suitable for this use, and so it will have to be demolished and removed, and then a new surface put down.
27 28 29	Mr. Anderson asked if it would be ground up, or hauled up, or piled in a corner on the lot.
30 31 32 33 34 35 36	Mr. Wauthier said they would have to evaluate the material to see if it can be ground up and used as a subbase below the new pavement. He said that if it is going to be suitable for that, they will have to recycle it on site. He said that if it is not going to be suitable, the contractor will have to remove it and properly dispose of it. He said until they take the samples and do the evaluation of exactly what's there, they won't know if it will be suitable to recycle on site. He said their goal would be to reuse it if possible because that would be less expensive.
37 38 39	Mr. Anderson stated that neighbors find the dust and noise from grinding cement and asphalt objectionable.
40 41 42 43	Mr. Wauthier said that he is sure they do; however, there are no homes or businesses within 1,000 feet of the site, so they don't think that will be a problem. He said that they will have to look at that when they get to that point, but they are not anticipating that being a problem.
43 44 45 46 47 48	Ms. Lee asked about Mr. Wauthier's response from today's email where he says the idea is to build a stormwater management basin in the northwest corner of the tract that will hold all of the stormwater runoff from the entire site. The discharge from that basin would be to the west, directly into the I-57 roadside ditch. She asked if there is any permission they have to get from the State of Illinois with it being a federal based highway to allow discharge to the I-57 ditch.

Mr. Wauthier said yes, they will have to get permit from the Illinois Department of Transportation. He said that they have a permit policy in place. He said that since the existing drainage from that site already flows into the ditch, as can be seen in the topographic map in their submittal, so IDOT will allow that to be done so long as it meets their permit requirements. He said that would be part of the design; as part of the concept that they put together, they made sure that the proposed stormwater basin meets IDOT requirements so they will be able to get a permit.

- 8 9
- Mr. Elwell asked if there is any type of tiling in the six acres to the west.

Mr. Wauthier said not to their knowledge, nor from Reifsteck property to the east underneath the gas station site and through that property. If the Special Use is approved, they will have to look at that and make sure that there are no offsite tiles that would be damaged. He said that if there is tile that is only serving that site, it will get replaced as part of the proposed drainage system for this site. He said that they want to protect tile.

15

Mr. Wood referred to Mr. Wauthier's email about environmental issues and underground tank storage
leaks, which said the tanks have been mitigated, and they would continue to monitor that. He asked if the
tanks have been removed or will they be removed in the process of removing that surface.

19

Mr. Wauthier said the intent as part of sale is that the seller will remove any tanks. He said that as far as anyone is aware, there are no leaks from the tanks. He said that as part of the EPA requirements for any tank removal, that contractor will test to confirm that no leaks have taken place, and if there are leaks, they will immediately have to remediate them. He said that the site has a clean bill of health, so to speak, with any past remediation efforts. He said that there is no contamination that exists there as far as anyone knows, but as you pull the tanks out, if you discover something, they will have to deal with it.

- Mr. Hall asked Mr. Wauthier asked if they need an EPA permit to remove those tanks, or do you just
 remove them and if you find out you need EPA approval, you bring them in.
- 30 Mr. Wauthier said that they do need an EPA permit to remove them, and that permit has been issued and
 31 a contractor hired to do that.
 32
- 33 Mr. Elwell asked if there were any other questions from the Board.

Mr. Randol asked Mr. Hall if the Board needs to have a special condition about the sandpiper birds as to
 construction being limited to their migratory and nesting timeframe.

37

34

38 Mr. Hall said that he thinks that would be up to the Board. He said that the petitioner has stated they will 39 take that into account, which is perhaps the first time a petitioner has stated they would willingly take that 40 into account. He said that the Board could trust the petitioner to do the right thing, or the Board could 41 impose a condition.

- 42
- 43 Mr. Elwell asked what the groundcover will be on the west 6 acres.44

Mr. Wauthier said that eventually the entire site will be self-storage buildings and paving, other than the
stormwater management basin and the 25-30 feet wide periphery vegetated landscape area. Currently there
is row crop agriculture, but it will be grass and paved for the most part. The first phase of development is

- 48 actually on that 6.5-acre tract, not on the gas station tract.
- 49

1	Mr. Elwell asked about parking.						
2 3	Mr. Hall said	there will be sufficient p	arking				
3 4	IVII. Hall Salu	there will be sufficient p	arking.				
5	Mr. Elwell as	ked if there was any cros	ss-examination. Seeing none	e, he asked if anyone else would like to			
6		•	he Board would like to proce	•			
7		6)	1				
8	Mr. Elwell er	ntertained a motion to pro	ceed with the special condit	ions.			
9		-	-				
10	Mr. Wood m	loved, seconded by Mr.	Roberts, to proceed with t	he special conditions.			
11							
12	Mr. Elwell as	ked for a roll call vote.					
13	T1	11 1 0 11					
14 15	The vote was	called as follows:	F III	Devided and			
15 16		Anderson – yes Roberts – yes	Elwell – yes Wood – yes	Randol – yes Lee – yes			
17		Koberts – yes	woou – yes	Lee – yes			
18	The motion	nassed					
19	The motion j	pusseu.					
20	Mr. Elwell re	ferred to the special cond	litions on page 25 of 28 of A	Attachment G.			
21		1	1 0				
22	А.	The Zoning Administ	rator shall not issue a Zo	ning Compliance Certificate for the			
23		proposed Self-Storag	e Warehouse Units provid	ling heat and utilities to individual			
24		units until the petitio	ner has demonstrated that	t the proposed Special Use complies			
25		with the Illinois Acces	sibility Code.				
26							
27		1	tated above is required to en	e			
28		That the proposed Special Use meets applicable State requirements for					
29		accessibility.					
30 31	Mr. Moore av	greed with special condition	on A				
32	wir. wibbie ag	greed with special conditi	Ioli A.				
33	В.	The Zoning Administ	rator shall not authorize a	Zoning Compliance Certificate until			
34	D .	0		or proposed exterior lighting on the			
35		-	•	equirements of Section 6.1.2.			
36		5 1 1 5	1, 88	1			
37		The special condition s	tated above is required to en	sure the following:			
38		That the prope	osed use is in compliance w	ith the Zoning Ordinance.			
39							
40	Mr. Moore ag	greed with special condition	on B.				
41	G	XX X X					
42	C.	-	ns on the subject proper	ty can include anything other than			
43		simple storage.					
44 45		The special condition a	tated above is required to en	sure the fellowing:			
45 46		1	onal uses are established of	6			
47		i nat no auditi		n the subject property.			
48	Mr. Moore ag	greed with special condition	ion C.				
49	2						

1 2 3 4 5 6	D.	D. The Zoning Administrator shall not authorize a Zoning Compliance Certificate authorizing occupancy of the proposed buildings until the Zoning Administrator has received a certification of inspection from an Illinois Licensed Architect or other qualified inspector certifying that the new buildings comply with the following codes: (A) the 2006 or later edition of the International Building Code, and (B) the 2008 or later edition of the National Electrical Code NFPA 70.					
7		T 1	• 1 1•.• 1				
8 9		The s	pecial condition stated a	-	-		
10			New commercial but	lunigs snan de n	n conformance with Public Act 96-704.		
11	Mr. Moore as	preed w	with special condition D.				
12	11110 1110 010 02	5					
13	E.	A se	otic system shall be inst	alled on the sub	ject property, and:		
14		(1)	•		proved until the petitioner provides a copy		
15			of certification from	the County Hea	alth Department that the proposed septic		
16			system on the subjec	t property has s	ufficient capacity for the proposed use.		
17							
18		(2)	The septic leach field	shall be kept fre	e of vehicular traffic and cannot be paved		
19			over.				
20			• • • • • • • • •				
21		The s	pecial condition stated a	1	e		
22			That the septic system	n complies with	State regulations.		
23 24	Mr. Mooro ou	mood w	tith spacial condition E				
24 25	wii. wioore ag	gieeu v	vith special condition E.				
26	F.	A co	mnlete Storm Water I	rainage Plan tl	hat conforms to the requirements of the		
27			1	0	ontrol Ordinance shall be submitted and		
28			_		pplication, and all required certifications		
29			-	0	Coning Compliance Certificate.		
30			I		G		
31		The s	pecial condition stated a	bove is required	to ensure the following:		
32			That the drainage in	nprovements co	nform to the requirements of the Storm		
33			Water Management	and Erosion Co	ntrol Ordinance.		
34							
35	Mr. Moore ag	greed w	vith special condition F.				
36		•	1				
37	Mr. Elwell entertained a motion to move to the Findings of Fact.						
38	Mar Daharata			.]			
39 40	Mr. Roberts	move	l, seconded by Mr. Wo	od, to move to th	ie Findings of Fact.		
40 41	Mr Flwell as	ked fo	a roll call vote.				
42	WII. LIWCH as	KCU IU	a foir call voic.				
43	The vote was called as follows:						
44	Anderson – yes Elwell – yes Randol – yes						
45		rts – y	•	v	Lee – yes		
46		J		e e	v		
47	The motion	passed					
48							
49							

1 2

FINDINGS OF FACT FOR CASE 004-S-21:

From the documents of record and the testimony and exhibits received at the public hearing for zoning case
004-S-21 held on April 29, 2021, the Zoning Board of Appeals of Champaign County finds that:

5 6

7

1. The requested Special Use Permit IS necessary for the public convenience at this location because:

- Mr. Randol stated that the requested Special Use Permit IS necessary for the public convenience at this
 location because: a market study commissioned by the applicant indicates that the demand for self-storage
 facilities within a 5-mile radius of the proposed site exceeds the supply for these types of facilities. There
 are currently wait lists for climate-controlled self-storage and for several other unit types. The subject
 property is located in the northeast quadrant of the I-57 interchange at CR 1000N/CH 18/Monticello Road.
 Nearby villages include Tolono (1.8 miles), Savoy (2.3 miles), and Sadorus (4 miles). The City of
 Champaign is approximately 2.6 miles north.
- 16
- The requested Special Use Permit, SUBJECT TO THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS IMPOSED HEREIN, is so designed, located, and proposed to be operated so that it WILL NOT be injurious to the district in which it shall be located or otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare because:
- 22

a. The street has ADEQUATE traffic capacity and the entrance location has ADEQUATE visibility.

23 24

Mr. Wood stated that the street has ADEQUATE traffic capacity and the entrance location has ADEQUATE visibility because: traffic volumes along Monticello Road are below capacity, and the installation of this particular business as opposed to the gas station would probably result in lower traffic than what has been there in the past. There will be an improvement to the entrance with the widened shoulder on Monticello Road.

- 30
- 31 32

b. Emergency services availability is ADEQUATE.

Mr. Wood stated that emergency services availability is ADEQUATE because: the subject property is
 located approximately 5 road miles from the Tolono Fire Protection District station, which should be close
 enough for them to service that location adequately.

36

37 Mr. Elwell asked if we are assuming that there is water on the premises either through the well or by38 connecting to the Illinois American Water main that is one-third of a mile away.

39

40 Mr. Wood said that he thinks they have those two choices that Mr. Wauthier discussed. He said that the 41 option with Illinois American Water is relatively expensive. He said that with the well option, he doesn't 42 know how well located a well being that far south is, it's not located over the Mahomet Aquifer. He said 43 he thinks the third suggestion was that they have some kind of water supply on premises for fire 44 suppression.

45

46 Mr. Elwell asked if this statement have any bearing on availability of water for water suppression.47

48 Mr. Hall said that they way it is written, it is only intending to address the availability of emergency 49 services. He said that the Board can always take into account whether water for firefighting is available

1 2 2	or not, but h these finding	ne would say that would be an additional factor. He said the Board can always add things to gs.
3 4 5	Mr. Elwell a	asked if fire suppression would not be considered emergency services.
6 7 8 9	how close y	d that fire suppression is emergency services; emergency services availability has to do with you are to the services and are the services readily available. He said they could add another fire suppression feasibility at this property if the Board wants to add it.
10 11		asked Mr. Randol, with his background with the fire service, how would a fire be fought if vater to this facility.
12 13 14 15	the county h	said that the first thing is that Tolono would request mutual aid, and every fire department in as a mutual aid agreement with each other. He said that tankers would transport water in, and we to be shuttled in after that from the nearest fire hydrant.
16 17 18		s asked if the retention pond would hold enough water year-round to adequately supply ike that, or is that basin shallow.
19 20 21	Mr. Randol pulled from	said that if it is deep enough, a dry hydrant system can be installed to where water could be that pond.
22 23 24 25		said his neighbors have a system using a borrow pit, and he just wondered how deep the basin loesn't think it says the depth of the retention pond on the specifications.
25 26 27		said that most fire apparatus have a lift capability of lifting water 20 feet, so if the water level feet from the paved surface, there should be no problem getting water.
28 29 30	Mr. Elwell a	asked what size well would be needed to supply the apparatus.
31 32 33 34		said he is not a well man, but the issue is not the well, but that you would have to have the the water when it comes from the wells. He said you don't just hook up to a well with a fire get water.
34 35 36	c.	The Special Use WILL be compatible with adjacent uses.
37 38 39 40	around the I	tated that the Special Use WILL be compatible with adjacent uses because: all four quadrants -57 interchange at Monticello Road/CR 1000N/CH-18 are zoned either B-2, B-3, or B-4. The nd use is commercial.
41 42	d.	Surface and subsurface drainage will be ADEQUATE.
43 44 45 46	construction	tated that surface and subsurface drainage will be ADEQUATE because: the site plan includes of perimeter surface drainage swales, an internal system of surface drainage, and a management basin with a storage volume of approximately 3.5 acre-feet of stormwater runoff.
47 48	e.	Public safety will be ADEQUATE.

Mr. Randol stated that public safety will be ADEQUATE because: the subject property is located 1 approximately 5 road miles from the Tolono Fire Protection District station, about 6 miles from Sadorus, 2 3 and about 3 miles from Savoy. There are good county and state highways for fire trucks to get to the site.

4 5

6

10

13

15

19

f.

The provisions for parking will be ADEQUATE.

7 Mr. Wood said that the provisions for parking will be ADEQUATE because: analysis by P&Z staff 8 indicates that there is sufficient space on the property for all 368 required parking spaces, and if we go 9 back to item 2, that will not be injurious to the district.

11 Mr. Elwell asked Mr. Hall if there have been any requirements for water storage that the Board has 12 requested for fire suppression needs.

- 14 Mr. Hall said no, that has never been an issue.
- 16 The requested Special Use Permit, SUBJECT TO THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS 3a. 17 IMPOSED HEREIN, DOES conform to the applicable regulations and standards of the 18 **DISTRICT** in which it is located.
- 20 Mr. Wood said that the requested Special Use Permit, SUBJECT TO THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS 21 IMPOSED HEREIN, DOES conform to the applicable regulations and standards of the DISTRICT in 22 which it is located.
- 23

29

33

34

36 37

38

40

- 24 The requested Special Use Permit, SUBJECT TO THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS **3b**. 25 IMPOSED HEREIN, DOES preserve the essential character of the DISTRICT in which it is 26 located because:
- 27 The Special Use will be designed to CONFORM to all relevant County ordinances a. 28 and codes.
- 30 Mr. Wood stated that the Special Use will be designed to CONFORM to all relevant County ordinances 31 and codes. 32
 - b. The Special Use WILL be compatible with adjacent uses.

35 Mr. Wood stated that the Special Use WILL be compatible with adjacent uses.

- Public safety will be ADEQUATE. c.
- 39 Mr. Wood stated that public safety will be ADEQUATE.

41 Mr. Wood stated that the requested Special Use Permit, SUBJECT TO THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS 42 IMPOSED HEREIN, DOES preserve the essential character of the DISTRICT in which it is located.

- 43 44 4. The requested Special Use Permit, SUBJECT TO THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS 45 IMPOSED HEREIN, IS in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Ordinance 46 because: 47
 - The Special Use is authorized in the District. a.
- 48
- Mr. Elwell stated that the Special Use is authorized in the District. 49

1 2 3	b.	The requested Special Use Permit IS necessary for the public convenience at this location.
4 5 6	Mr. Randol location.	stated that the requested Special Use Permit IS necessary for the public convenience at this
7 8 9 10 11	с.	The requested Special Use Permit, SUBJECT TO THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS IMPOSED HEREIN, is so designed, located, and proposed to be operated so that it WILL NOT be injurious to the district in which it shall be located or otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare.
12 13 14 15 16	IMPOSED]	stated that the requested Special Use Permit, SUBJECT TO THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS HEREIN, is so designed, located, and proposed to be operated so that it WILL NOT be the district in which it shall be located or otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety,
17 18 19 20	d.	The requested Special Use Permit, SUBJECT TO THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS IMPOSED HEREIN, DOES preserve the essential character of the DISTRICT in which it is located.
21 22 23		stated that the requested Special Use Permit, SUBJECT TO THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS HEREIN, DOES preserve the essential character of the DISTRICT in which it is located.
24 25 26		stated that the requested Special Use Permit, SUBJECT TO THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS IEREIN, IS in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Ordinance.
27 28	5. The	requested Special Use IS NOT an existing non-conforming use.
29 30	Mr. Elwell s	tated that the requested Special Use IS NOT an existing non-conforming use.
31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48		 SPECIAL CONDITIONS IMPOSED HEREIN ARE REQUIRED FOR THE TICULAR PURPOSES DESCRIBED BELOW: The Zoning Administrator shall not issue a Zoning Compliance Certificate for the proposed Self-Storage Warehouse Units providing heat and utilities to individual units until the petitioner has demonstrated that the proposed Special Use complies with the Illinois Accessibility Code. The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following: That the proposed Special Use meets applicable State requirements for accessibility. The Zoning Administrator shall not authorize a Zoning Compliance Certificate until the petitioner has demonstrated that any new or proposed exterior lighting on the subject property will comply with the lighting requirements of Section 6.1.2. The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following: The zoning Administrator shall not authorize a Zoning Compliance Certificate until the petitioner has demonstrated that any new or proposed exterior lighting on the subject property will comply with the lighting requirements of Section 6.1.2. The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following: That the proposed use is in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance.
49 50	C.	No business operations on the subject property can include anything other than simple storage.

			AS ALL KOVED US	27721	$\mathbf{ZDA} \ \mathbf{U7}/\mathbf{Z}/\mathbf{Z}\mathbf{I}$			
1		1	1	ed to ensure the following:				
2 3		That no add	ditional uses are establ	shed on the subject prope	rty.			
4 5 7 8 9	D.	The Zoning Administrator shall not authorize a Zoning Compliance Certificate authorizing occupancy of the proposed buildings until the Zoning Administrator has received a certification of inspection from an Illinois Licensed Architect or other qualified inspector certifying that the new buildings comply with the following codes: (A) the 2006 or later edition of the International Building Code, and (B) the 2008 or later edition of the National Electrical Code NFPA 70.						
10 11		The energial condition	an stated above is nearly	ad to any up the fellowing.				
12		-	-	ed to ensure the following: e in conformance with Pul	olic Act 96-704.			
13 14	E.	A contia system sh	all ha installad an tha s	ubiast proparty and				
14	Е.		all be installed on the s ise Permit shall not be a	pproved until the petition	er nrovides a conv			
16				lealth Department that th				
17				s sufficient capacity for th				
18					• Proposed door			
19		(2) The septic l	each field shall be kept	free of vehicular traffic an	d cannot be paved			
20		over.	•		I			
21								
22		The special condition	on stated above is requir	ed to ensure the following:				
23		That the se	ptic system complies w	ith State regulations.				
24								
25	F.	-	8	that conforms to the rec	-			
26			8	Control Ordinance shall				
27			8	t application, and all requ				
28		shall be submitted	prior to issuance of the	e Zoning Compliance Cert	ificate.			
29		The energial condition	an stated above is nearly	ad to another the following				
30 31				ed to ensure the following: conform to the requirement	onts of the Storm			
32			agement and Erosion (_	ents of the Storm			
33			lagement and Erosion					
34	Mr Flwell e	ntertained a motion to	adopt the Summary of]	Evidence, Documents of Re	cord and Findings			
35	of Fact, as an		adopt the Summary of	Evidence, Documents of Re	cord, and I manigs			
36	51 1 1 90, up ul							
37	Mr. Hall said	d that there are three	Documents of Record th	nat should be added. Item	7 is the email with			
38				8 is the email from David Sr				
39	29, 2021. Item 9 is the email from Don Wauthier to John Reifsteck dated April 28, 2021.							
40				- ·				
41								
42	Record, and	Findings of Fact, as	amended.					
43								
44	Mr. Elwell as	sked for a roll call vot	e.					
45	T 1	11 1 0 11						
46		s called as follows:	יו וק	יי מ				
47		erson – yes	Elwell – yes	Randol – yes				
48	Kobe	erts – yes	Wood – yes	Lee – yes				
49								

1	The motion	passed.					
2							
3	Mr. Elwell entertained motion to move to the Final Determination.						
4							
5	Mr. Randol	moved, seconded by 1	Mr. Roberts, to mov	e to Final Determination.			
6		-					
7	Mr. Elwell a	sked for a roll call vote					
8							
9	The vote was	s called as follows:					
10		erson – yes	Elwell – yes	Randol – yes			
11		erts – yes	Wood – yes	Lee – yes			
12	1000	105 yes	viood yes				
13	The motion	nassed					
14		passeu.					
15	EINAL DET	ΓΕΡΜΙΝΑΤΙΟΝ ΕΟΕ	CASE 004 S 21				
16	FINAL DE	ERMINATION FOR	<u> CASE 004-5-21</u>				
	Mu Dandal	married accorded by	Mr. Wood that the	Champaign County Zaning Doord of A	la		
17		, e	-	Champaign County Zoning Board of A			
18	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			and other evidence received in this ca	,		
19	-			E been met, and pursuant to the au	thority		
20	granted by S	Section 9.1.6 B. of the	Champaign County	Zoning Ordinance, determines that:			
21		a					
22		1 1		21 is hereby GRANTED WITH SPH			
23		11	-	oore, Stephen Dahl, and Brad Bengtson	, d.b.a.		
24	Sand	piper Holdings LLC,	to authorize the foll	lowing:			
25							
26				up to 170,260 square feet of Self-S	0		
27	Warehouse Units of various sizes including 45,300 square feet of Self-Storage Warehouse						
28	Units with climate control and 124,960 square feet of non-climate controlled Self-Storage						
29	V	Varehouse Units as a S	Special Use on land	in the B-3 Highway Business Zoning Di	istrict.		
30							
31	SUB.	JECT TO THE FOLI	LOWING SPECIAL	CONDITIONS:			
32	А.	The Zoning Admin	istrator shall not is	ssue a Zoning Compliance Certificate	for the		
33		proposed Self-Stor	age Warehouse Uni	its providing heat and utilities to ind	ividual		
34		units until the petit	tioner has demonstr	rated that the proposed Special Use co	mplies		
35		with the Illinois Ac	cessibility Code.		-		
36			•				
37	В.	The Zoning Admin	istrator shall not au	thorize a Zoning Compliance Certificat	te until		
38		the petitioner has a	demonstrated that a	any new or proposed exterior lighting	on the		
39		subject property wi	ill comply with the li	ighting requirements of Section 6.1.2.			
40							
41	C.	No business operation	tions on the subjec	t property can include anything othe	r than		
42		simple storage.					
43							
44	D.	The Zoning Admin	nistrator shall not	authorize a Zoning Compliance Cert	tificate		
45		authorizing occupa	ncy of the proposed	buildings until the Zoning Administrat	tor has		
46		received a certifica	tion of inspection f	from an Illinois Licensed Architect or	• other		
47		qualified inspector	certifying that the n	ew buildings comply with the following	codes:		
48			• •	ernational Building Code, and (B) the 2			
49			National Electrical (e			
50							

1 2 3 4	E.	 A septic system shall be installed on the subject property, and: (1) A Zoning Use Permit shall not be approved until the petitioner provides a copy of certification from the County Health Department that the proposed septic system on the subject property has sufficient capacity for the proposed use. 				
5 6 7		(2)	The septic over.	leach field shall be kep	t free of vehicular traffic and car	not be paved
8 9 10 11 12 13	F.	A complete Storm Water Drainage Plan that conforms to the requirements of the Storm Water Management and Erosion Control Ordinance shall be submitted and approved as part of the Zoning Use Permit application, and all required certifications shall be submitted prior to issuance of the Zoning Compliance Certificate.				
14 15	Mr. Elwell as	sked fo	r a roll call vo	ote.		
16 17 18 19		called rson – rts – y	yes	Elwell – yes Wood – yes	Randol – yes Lee – yes	
20 21	The motion	passed	•			
22 23 24				he case was approved, a d the level of detail prov	nd that the P&Z Department woul vided for the Board.	ld be in touch.
25 26 27	Case 005-V- Petitioner: St Request: Aut	even J		for a 10.907-acre lot in	lieu of the maximum allowed 3	acres in area
28 29	for a lot with	soils t	hat are best p		AG-1 Agriculture Zoning Distric	
30 31 32 33	North, Rang	e 8 Ea	st of the Thi	rd Principal Meridian	Southeast Quarter of Section 7, in Champaign Township, comr field Avenue, Champaign.	
34 35 36 37		egister	for that publ	ic hearing. He reminded	testify for any public hearing toni d the audience that when they sig	0 0
38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45	anyone the o show of hand be called upo before asking He said that	pportui ls or a on. He g any qu attorne	nity to cross- verbal indicat said that those uestions. He n ys who have o	examine any witness. H tion from those who wo e who desire to cross-ex- noted that no new testime complied with Article 7	ninistrative Case, and as such, the G te said that at the proper time, he uld like to cross-examine, and eac camine will be asked to clearly sta ony is to be given during the cross .6 of the ZBA By-Laws are exemp ne the nature of their request prior	will ask for a ch person will ate their name s-examination. pt from cross-
46 47 48			-	-	npaign, stated that his request for t ad as it was conceived and maint	

49 last 100 years, and to incorporate the hedgerow that is an integral part of the property in terms of outlining

a workable area orientation for crop production and wildlife habitat. He said that the 10.9 acres also supports hay production that he would like to retain, and he wants to square and straighten all the agricultural lines to make farming more efficient. Mr. Elwell asked if there were any questions from the Board. He asked Mr. Jacobs if the 75-acre parcel includes the house. Mr. Jacobs said correct. Ms. Lee asked if he plans to reside on the property himself. Mr. Jacobs said correct.

- Ms. Lee asked if he had plans for the future other than the residence.
- Mr. Jacobs said no.

Mr. Elwell asked about the outbuilding to the north of the proposed 10 acres shown on Attachment C.

Mr. Jacobs said that the outbuilding is a corn crib and would be removed as part of the transaction.

- Mr. Elwell asked if that area of lighter soil where the crib is would be returned to farming.
- Mr. Jacobs said correct.
- Mr. Elwell asked if the hay production is to the south of the house.
- Mr. Jacobs said that the area to the east of the farmstead and wrapping around to the west is the hay producing area.
- Mr. Elwell said that he understands the 3-acre limit, but it seems to him that in this case, you are keeping the spirit of the farmstead in place. He asked Mr. Hall if there would be a downside from a staff perspective.
- Mr. Hall said they tried to write it into the ordinance that this type of request would be allowed by-right, but that was just too difficult. He said that he thinks this is a reasonable request.
- Mr. Elwell said that if there was a picture of a perfect variance, this would be it.
- Mr. Elwell asked if there were any other questions from the Board or staff.
- Mr. Anderson asked the shed would be removed by whom and when.
- Mr. Jacobs said it would be removed by Jacobs Excavating Service in the next 30 days. He said that Mr.
- Bud Barker has had lengthy discussion about that, and he is very comfortable with the situation and they are willing to write a contract to that effect if necessary.

Mr. Elwell noted that there were no special conditions, and entertained a motion to move to the Findings of Fact.

Mr. Roberts	moved, seconded by N	Ir. Wood, to move to the Figure 1.	indings of Fact.
Mr. Elwell as	ked for a roll call vote.		
The vote was	called as follows:		
	Anderson – yes Roberts – yes	Elwell – yes Wood – yes	Randol – yes Lee – yes
The motion p	bassed.		
FINDINGS (DF FACT FOR CASE	005_V_21	
			eived at the public hearing for zoning
		•	eals of Champaign County finds that:
1.	1		st which are peculiar to the land
			to other similarly situated land a
	structures elsewhere	in the same district.	
Ma Waad	id that an actual and the	and aimprovementary and DO	avist which and according to the low of
	1		exist which are peculiar to the land
		•	tuated land and structures elsewhere
			is is and has been for the last 100 year
	ē		e for it to be broken up just to meet a
			ong before zoning regulations occurr
			nich makes it difficult to segregate.
			e 65 acres to actually farm the proper
particularly w	on the size of equipment	nt they have these days.	
•			
2.			carrying out the strict letter of t
			easonable or otherwise permitted u
	of the land or structu	ire or construction.	
	· 1 /1 / /· 1 1·00	1. 1 11 1	
	▲	1	by carrying out the strict letter of
•	6	1	therwise permitted use of the land
			tial lot to 3 acres would create a fai
			It has been this way for 100 years, a
probably will	be for another 100 year	·S.	
3.	The special condition	ng gingumstangga handshi	ng or practical difficulties DO N
5.	result from actions of		ps, or practical difficulties DO NO
Mr Randol e	aid that the special con	ditions circumstances hard	ships, or practical difficulties DO N
	-		to use existing markings on the land
	nd make it useable for e		to use existing markings on the faile
4.	The requested varia	nce IS in harmony with tl	he general purpose and intent of t
4.	Ordinance.	ice is in narmony with th	ic general purpose and intent of t
	or unrallee.		
Mr Wood sa	id that the requested va		
		ariance IN in harmony with	The general nilrnose and intent of

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 13 14 5 16 7 8 9 10 11 2 13 14 5 16 7 8 9 10 11 2 13 14 5 16 7 8 9 21 22 3 4 5 26 7 8 9 30 1 3 3 3 4 5 6 7 8 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	1
33	2
33	4
33	5 6
33	7
33	8 9
33	10
33	12
33	13 14
33	15
33	16 17
33	18 19
33	20
33	21 22
33	23
33	24 25
33	26 27
33	28
33	29 30
33	31
34 35 36 37 38	33
36 37 38	34 35
37 32	36
20	37 38
39	39
40 41	

5. The requested variance WILL NOT be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare.

Mr. Randol said that the requested variance WILL NOT be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare because: there will be no changes to any structures, and there have been no negative comments from relevant jurisdictions.

6. The requested variance IS the minimum variation that will make possible the reasonable use of the land/structure.

Mr. Wood said that the requested variance IS the minimum variation that will make possible the reasonable use of the land/structure.

7.

- NO SPECIAL CONDITIONS ARE HEREBY IMPOSED.
- 6 Mr. Elwell said that no special conditions are hereby imposed.
- 8 Mr. Elwell stated that there are no other Documents of Record to add.

Mr. Elwell entertained a motion to adopt the Summary of Evidence, Documents of Record, and Finding of Fact, as amended.

Mr. Roberts moved, seconded by Mr. Randol to adopt the Summary of Evidence, Documents of Record, and Finding of Fact, as amended.

Mr. Elwell asked for a roll call vote.

8 The vote was called as follows:

Anderson – yes	Elwell – yes	Randol – yes
Roberts – yes	Wood – yes	Lee – yes

- 32 The motion passed.
- 4 Mr. Elwell entertained a motion to move to the Final Determination.

6 Ms. Lee moved, seconded by Mr. Randol, to move to the Final Determination.

38 Mr. Elwell asked for a roll call vote.

40	The vote was called as follows:		
41	Anderson – yes	Elwell – yes	Randol – yes
42	Roberts – yes	Wood – yes	Lee – yes

4344 The motion passed.

- 45
- 46 <u>FINAL DETERMINATION FOR CASE 005-V-21</u>
 47
- 48 Mr. Randol, seconded by Mr. Wood, that the Champaign County Zoning Board of Appeals finds 49 that, based upon the application, testimony, and other evidence received in this case, that the

1 2		requirements for approval in Section 9.1.9.C HAVE been met, and pursuant to the authority granted by Section 9.1.6.B of the Champaign County Zoning Ordinance, the Zoning Board of					
3		Appeals of Champaign County determines that:					
4	•••						
5		-		GRANTED to the petitioner, Steven			
6		Jacobs, to authorize the follow	ving:				
7							
8				the maximum allowed 3 acres in area			
9		for a lot with soils that are best prime farmland in the AG-1 Agriculture Zoning District, per Section 5.3 of the Champaign County Zoning Ordinance.					
10 11		per Section 5.3 of the Cha	mpaign County Zoning C	Jrainance.			
12	Mr F	lwell asked for a roll call vote.					
13	IVII. L	Iwen asked for a fon can vote.					
14	The v	ote was called as follows:					
15	THC V	Anderson – yes	Elwell – yes	Randol – yes			
16		Roberts – yes	Wood – yes	Lee – yes			
17		<u> </u>					
18	The n	notion passed.					
19		-					
20	Mr. E	lwell told Mr. Jacobs that his case	e has been approved, and s	staff would reach out soon.			
21							
22 23 24	7.	7. Staff Report – Mr. Hall said that a new staff member will fill Connie Berry's position starting Monday, May 3, 2021.					
25 26	8.	Other Business					
27 28		A. Review of Docket					
29 30		Mr. Wood said he would be gone in May and would miss both May meetings.					
31 32	9.	Audience participation with r	respect to matters other t	han cases pending before the Board			
33	None						
34 25	10	Adjournment					
35 36	10.	Adjournment					
37 38	Mr. E	Mr. Elwell entertained a motion to adjourn the meeting.					
39 40	Mr. F	Mr. Roberts moved, seconded by Mr. Wood, to adjourn the meeting.					
41 42	Mr. E	lwell requested a roll call vote.					
43	The v	ote was called as follows:					
44		Randol – yes	Roberts- yes	Wood – yes			
45		Anderson- yes	Elwell - no	Lee - yes			
46							
47 48	Mr. E	lwell said the motion carried.					
49	The m	neeting adjourned at 8:08 p.m.					

1	Respectfully submitted,
2 3 4	
4	
5 6	Secretary of Zoning Board of Appeals
6	
7 8	
° 9	
10	
11	
12	
13 14	
15	
16	
17 18	
19	
20	
21 22	
23	
24	
25	
26 27	
28	
29	
30	
31 32	
33	
34	
35 36	
37	
38	
39	
40 41	
42	
43	
44 45	
46	
47	
48	
49	